# EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:	Area Planning Sub-Committee <b>Date:</b> 2 July 2014 West
Place:	Council Chamber, Civic Offices, <b>Time:</b> 7.30 - 9.08 pm High Street, Epping
Members Present:	Ms Y Knight (Chairman), A Mitchell MBE (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, R Butler, Ms H Kane, Mrs J Lea, Mrs M Sartin, Ms G Shiell, Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and Mrs E Webster
Other Councillors:	
Apologies:	D Dorrell and Mrs R Gadsby
Officers Present:	J Godden (Planning Officer), J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant) and S Mitchell (PR Website Editor)

#### 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council's Protocol for Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

# 2. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning permission.

#### 3. MINUTES

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 4 June 2014 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

#### 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor E Webster declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being related to the applicant. The Councillor had determined that her interest was non-pecuniary and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/0985/14 The Elms Caravan Park, Lippitts Hill, Loughton.

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillors M Sartin and S-A Stavrou declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being members of the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority for the Council. The Councillors had determined that their interest was non-pecuniary and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/2097/13 Picks Farm, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey.

#### 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting.

#### 6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That, Planning applications numbered 1 - 8 be determined as set out in the annex to these minutes.

#### 7. DELEGATED DECISIONS

The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0929/14
SITE ADDRESS:	1 Pecks Hill Nazeing Essex EN9 2NX
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Two storey side extension and first floor rear extension
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

#### Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=562471

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0819/14
SITE ADDRESS:	10 Townmead Road Waltham Abbey Essex EN9 1RP
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey South West
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Single storey rear extension and part two storey rear extension
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

#### Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=562099

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 3 The proposed new window opening in the flank elevation at first floor level shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.
- 4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0205/14
SITE ADDRESS:	Rosewood Farm Common Road Broadley Common Roydon Essex EN9 2DF
PARISH:	Roydon
WARD:	Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of existing commercial stables and construction of 26 no. 2-bed, 9 no. 3-bed and 4 no. 4-bed houses (39 dwellings in total, including 12 affordable homes), with associated new access, off-street parking, amenity space, play area and landscaping
DECISION:	Withdrawn by Applicant

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=559338

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0200/14
SITE ADDRESS:	Leaside Nursery Sedge Green Nazeing Essex EN9 2PA
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of existing nursery/commercial buildings and erection of 19 no. B1/B2/B8 commercial units with ancillary parking
RECOMMENDED DECISION:	Withdrawn by applicant

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=559333

APPLICATION No:	EPF/2097/13
SITE ADDRESS:	Picks Farm Sewardstone Road Waltham Abbey Essex E4 7RA
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey High Beach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Outline application for demolition of existing buildings and the erection of school buildings, 308 dwellings (including 45 affordable), a new village hall and a public meadow parkland with two lakes. Access to be determined. (Appearance, landscaping, layout and scale reserved)
DECISION:	Refuse Permission

#### Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=554852

Members considered whether there was a way forward for this application but determined that matters were such that this was not possible.

#### **REASON FOR REFUSAL**

- 1 The site is wholly within the Metropolitan Green Belt and only a small part of the land is previously developed. The proposed development is inappropriate development harmful to the openness of the Green Belt and the purposes of including land within the Green Belt. Very special circumstances put forward are not sufficient to outweigh the very significant harm to the Green Belt and other identified harm. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy GB2a of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the NPPF.
- 2 The intensity of proposed built development is at odds with the established pattern of development in the locality and will introduce a dense urban form of visually intrusive development into an area of open countryside, and have an excessive adverse impact on the openness and rural character of the area and in addition undermine the landscape setting of the Lee Valley Regional Park. The development is therefore contrary to policies GB7A and RST24 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.
- 3 The proposed development is poorly related to any existing urban area and is not easily accessed by more sustainable modes of transport, such as public transport, cycling and walking. It is not adjacent to or very close to services e.g. schools, community, retail, leisure facilities or employment and would result in the majority of journeys being made by private vehicle. The scale and nature of the development is not consistent with the principles of sustainability. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies CP1, CP2, CP3, CP6, CP9 and ST1 and ST2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the NPPF.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0910/14
SITE ADDRESS:	The White House Epping Road Epping Upland Epping Essex CM16 6PU
PARISH:	Epping Upland
WARD:	Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Outline application for the erection of two detached dwellings with garages within the curtilage of the existing dwelling and ancillary works.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

#### Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=562415

Members requested that an informative be added to the decision notice that a detailed planning application is presented to Area Planning Sub-Committee West for determination of reserved matters as outlined in Condition 2.

- 1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission or two years from the approval of the last of the reserved matters as defined in condition 2 below, whichever is the later.
- 2 a) Details of the reserved matters set out below ("the reserved matters") shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval within three years from the date of this permission:
  - (i) layout;
  - (ii) scale;
  - (iii) appearance;
  - (iv) access; and
  - (v) landscaping.
  - b) The reserved matters shall be carried out as approved.
  - c) Approval of all reserved matters shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced.
- 3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the approved Location Plan.
- 4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

- 5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.
- 6 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.
- 7 Before any preparatory demolition or construction works commence on site, full ecological surveys and a mitigation strategy for the site shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for agreement in writing with a working methodology for site clearance and construction work to minimise impact on any protected species and nesting birds. Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed strategy and methodology.
- 8 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.
- 9 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the management and maintenance plan.
- 10 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating uses having been identified for this site.

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no unexpected contamination was encountered.

- 11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 12 Prior to first occupation of proposed development, the proposed private drive shall be constructed to a width of 5.5 metres for at least the first 6 metres from the back of the carriageway and provided with an appropriate dropped kerb crossing of the verge.
- 13 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational and shall be retained at all times.
- 14 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access within 6 metres of the highway boundary.
- 15 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway.

And the completion by the 4<sup>th</sup> August 2014 (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) of a legal agreement to secure a contribution of £10,000 towards the provision of affordable housing.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0985/14
SITE ADDRESS:	The Elms Caravan Park Lippitts Hill Loughton Essex IG10 4AW
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey High Beach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Change of use of a 30 pitch static and touring holiday caravan and camping park to an extension of the adjoining residential mobile home park to provide 16 additional residential park homes with landscaping improvements.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the approved Location Plan and drawing no: NC 12.055-P-200
- 3 No more than sixteen mobile homes, as defined in the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites Act 1968, shall be stationed on the site at any time.
- 4 Occupancy of the mobile homes stationed on this site shall be limited to persons over the age of 50.
- 5 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.
- 6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where

appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 The parking areas shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0880/14
SITE ADDRESS:	Birchwood Industrial Estate Hoe Lane Nazeing Waltham Abbey Essex IG10 4EH
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Installation of a surface mounted weighbridge and weighbridge office. The weighbridge deck is constructed of metal and will measure 15m by 3.2m approx. The ramps to and from the weighbridge will measure 5m by 3.2m approx each.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

# Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH\_TYPE=1&DOC\_CLASS\_CODE=PL&FOLDER1\_REF=562330

- 1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the approved drawings nos: JSJ/plan1, JSJ/plan2
- 2 The weighbridge hereby permitted shall not be used outside the hours of 07:00 to 17:00 on Monday to Saturday and at no times on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
- This consent shall inure solely for the benefit of the applicant JSJ Wood Recycling 3 and for no other person or persons.

This page is intentionally left blank